Solicitation No. NNJ09BT112R                                                                 Amendment 001


Questions Submitted in Response to:
Final RFP for the Altair Conceptual Design Contract (ACDC)
I.  The following questions have been submitted in response to the ACDC Final RFP:
1. Question:  
Ref:  Section L.14.3 (e) 2, (pg. L-21)

Please clarify what is meant by 'calculation'.  Is something in additional to the rate and modifier data specified in paragraph L.14.3(e) 4, required? 

Answer:  The number of cases and corresponding rates are defined by OSHA for total recordable rate, total lost day rate, and total lost day plus restricted duty plus job transfer rate. The number of cases are typically reported on the OSHA 300A form along with the hours worked for each year. Together they are used to calculate the corresponding rates as defined by OSHA normalized for your employee hours in comparison with a 200,000 hour comparison standard.  The standard calculation is stipulated by OSHA in 29 CFR 1904 and the Bureau of Labor Statistics. 

2. Question:  
Ref:  Section L.14.3 (e) 4, (pg. L-21)
In section L.14.3(e) 4, we would like to better understand how this type of information will be used as lawsuit and liability history is not voluntarily released by corporations or insurance carriers.  Could you please identify how this type of historical information would be used for evaluation?  Will a Certificate of Insurance (COI) satisfy the requirement for a letter of certification?  COI’s can be provided by offerors and subcontractors to NASA, but are not normally sent by insurance carriers.  Please clarify what is desired regarding "safety and health" letters of certification sent directly to NASA by insurance carriers.  Please also clarify what is meant by "loss runs."
Answer:  The information will be used to assess the offeror's safety past performance as reflected in its insurance loss history.   Your letter from the underwriter or insurance carrier may take the form of an announcement of the Experience Modification Rate earned by your company, similar to a discount rate on premiums. By limiting your company's losses, favorable Experience Modification Rates are typically earned.  Losses beyond typical industry will usually result in less desireable Experience Modifier Rates. A "Loss Run" report can take many acceptable forms, but are typically a print-out showing the description of insurance claims processed along with the amount/cost of each claim.  The "Loss Run" data is used to characterize the nature of incidents experienced by the company and substantiate injury/mishap data.  It may also suggest impending changes in the Experience Modification Rates. The letter from the carrier or underwriter provides independent verification of the offeror's loss history. A letter of certification is sufficient only if it provides a description of the losses experienced by the client company for the period of time requested.  It is important to note that the government does not rely solely on this information to assess a company's safety past performance.  This is only one element that is assessed in combination with a number of indicators.
3. Question:  
Ref:  Section Appendix L-3.2, (pg. 1 & 2)
To provide NASA with the right level of information being sought in TA1-B, could you provide an example of the data sought in the forms (word files) in Appendix L-3.2?
Answer:  As stated in RFP provision L.14.1 TA1 (b), NASA requests that your proposal in this area contain technical approach information, basis of estimate information, and resources information for each of the ten CLINs contained in the RFP.  No example will be provided for this area of the proposal.  Offerors are encouraged to consider the page count limitation for this volume and the overall requested data contained in Volume I (TA1, TA2, and TA3) in determining the level of data they wish to provide for TA1.  The appropriate level of data for TA1 (b) is the level of contract line items, or the ten CLINs contained in the RFP.  
4. Question:  
Ref:  Sections J and L, Attachment J-5, (pgs. J-5-1/J-5-X), L.13, (pg. L-8)
Please clarify due date of J-5.
Answer:  Subcontracting Plans are due with Model Contract submittal requirements for Volume V. 
5. Question:  
Ref:  Sections F and J.  F.2 Table, (pg. F-1), J-6-10 Table, (pg. J-6-10)
Please clarify start date for DAC-4
Answer:  The table in Section F is correct; therefore the table in Section J-6 should be updated. The correct start date for DAC-4 is July 2010.
6. Question:  
Ref:  Section L.14.1, TA1(b), 3rd paragraph, (pg. L-12)
Does NASA desire the TA1(b) response to provide three TRTs (Basic Contract only), or ten TRTs (Basic Contract plus Options)?
Answer:  The requirement is for ten TRTs (Basic plus Option CLINs) and reference to Clause B.2 is revised to Clause B.3.
7. Question:  
Ref:  Sections L.13, Table L-1, (pg. L-8) and M.4.1.3, (pg. M-5)

Considering the page limit decrease for the Management Volume II (from 30 to 25 pages), we believe we can meet the instructions/requirements of L.14.2.2 SB2 (b) for Volume II/Part 4 by pointing specifically to where this information is located in the Subcontracting Plan Attachment J-5, thereby freeing up space to provide a more detailed description of our management approach. Would this approach be acceptable to meet the Government’s evaluation criteria in M.4.1.3 Subfactor SB – Small Business Participation?

Answer:  Yes, responding to L.14.2.2 SB2 (b) for (Other Volume II, Part 4) with references to the Subcontracting Plan in Attachment J-5 is appropriate.

8. Question:  
Ref:  Section L, Appendix L-1, (pg. L-1-4)
Is NASA requesting the signature of the contractor’s authorized person to sign, or is this to be the signature of the Key Person being proposed?
Answer:  Signature of the Key Personnel Resume need not be the individual proposed as Key Personnel, but should be an authorized contractor representative.
9. Question:  
Ref:  Section J, Attachment J-1, DRDs ACDC-PM-01 and 02, (pgs. J-1-8/J-1-12)
The number of potential updates to the Analysis Cycle Summary Reports and Milestone Summary Reports to be provided per DRDs ACDC-PM-01 and ACDC-PM-02 is not clear and therefore difficult to estimate.  Recommend Delivery and Maintenance portion of these DRDs reflect:  “….NASA may request one revision of the initial submission prior to acceptance of the final version…..”

Answer:  NASA will only request revisions of the Summary Report when this is necessary to meet the acceptance criteria in the contract.  However, the Delivery and Maintenance section of both PM-01 and PM-02 are changed to read as follows.  “NASA may request revision of the initial submission if necessary to allow acceptance.  No updates are required after the Summary Report is accepted.”  
10. Question:  

Ref: Section J, Attachment J-1, DRD ACDC-SA-01, (pg. J-1-13)
Subsections associated with 1.9 were removed and noted as Reserved.  Should 1.9 also be removed and marked as Reserved?

Answer:  Yes and the correction to DRD ACDC-SA-01 is revised with the removal of 1.9 Miscellaneous Reports and now noted as Reserved.
11. Question:  
Ref:  Section L.14.4, (pgs. L-22/L-23) 
We understand the price cap of $42.4M, however, the phrase:  “nor may cumulative CLIN prices exceed the cumulative funding profile”, is causing considerable discussion on how to meet this requirement.  The table below illustrates, from a contractual standpoint, the core of the discussion.  The values utilized are from the estimates provided in the second table of that same RFP paragraph L.14.4.  The start date for the authorization of the CLINs was derived from the dates in the table F.2.  Can you clarify that it’s NASA’s intent that the CLIN prices (when authorized) are not to exceed the available funding or is it that the expenditure profile of authorized CLINs should not exceed the cumulative funding available?
	Fiscal Year
	09
	10
	11
	12

	Cumulative Value of CLIN prices authorized in ($M)
	7.2
	22.2
	32.2
	42.2

	
	
	
	
	

	Cumulative Funding Available ($M)
	1.6
	7.2
	22.2
	42.2


Answer:  NASA has two restrictions on how offeror's may establish prices at the CLIN level.  The first is that all individual CLIN prices, added together, may not exceed the $42.2 million contract limit.  The second is that expenditures may not exceed the available funding.  To aid in this, the RFP explains that "available funding" may be interpreted as "cumulative available funding." In terms of the clarification requested, the second alternative is the correct one: The expenditure profile of authorized CLINs may not exceed the cumulative funding available.

12. Question:  
Ref:  Section H, Clause H.6, (pgs. H-3 thru H-5)
NASA has included at H.6 the provision:  1852.232-77 Limitation of Funds (Fixed price Contract) (Mar 1989).  In order to assure that an offeror properly establishes its funding expectation, a clarification is requested.  The prescription for use of this clause at 1823.702-70 indicates that utilization of this clause is appropriate Para©, if the initial contract funding is at least 50% of the initial contract value unless the waiver in Para (f) has been completed.  Can NASA provide guidance relative to the 50% requirement has been waived?  This clarification is requested in order to assure that offerors can submit a proposal that is compliant with the customer’s contractual funding limitations. 

Answer:  Yes, we have received a signed waiver which negates the 50% initial funding requirement for this procurement.
II. The Final RFP sections are amended with “From/To” language in bold font as follows: 
SECTION J:   
(a)  Attachment J-1, DRDs ACDC-PM-01 and ACDC-PM-02, Box 8, DELIVERY AND MAINTENANCE  are changed:

FROM:  Initial submission within 30 days of completion of the milestone cycle.  NASA may request revision of the initial submission prior to acceptance of the final version.   The final version shall be provided to the Contracting Officer in printed format and electronically in Windchill.
TO:   Initial submission within 30 days of completion of the milestone cycle.  NASA may request revision of the initial submission if necessary to allow acceptance.  No updates are required after the Summary Report is accepted.   The final version shall be provided to the Contracting Officer in printed format and electronically in Windchill.

(b)  Attachment J-4, DRD ACDC-SA-01, MANAGEMENT LEADERSHIP AND EMPLOYEE PARTICIPATION is changed:

FROM:  1.9
Miscellaneous Reports.  The Contractor will acknowledge the following as standing requests of the Government and to be handled as described below.

TO:   1.9    [RESERVED.]
(c)  Attachment J-6, Table 3, “Planning for Future Altair Analysis Cycles” is changed:

FROM:   DAC-4 start date of Jun-10
TO:  DAC-4 start date of Jul-10

SECTION L:
Section L.14.1 VOLUME I: TECHNICAL (Page Limit:  60 Pages), TA1, 3rd paragraph is changed:

FROM:  This section requires three types of data, organized by contract deliverable item (CLINs from Clause B.2) as follows: 1) Technical Approach (TA) data; 2) Basis of Estimate (BOE) data; and, 3) Resources data.  Provide labor resources data in the Excel spreadsheet format (RFP Templates – Altair.xls) provided in Appendix L-3.  The file entitled “Narrative TRT sample.doc,” provided in Appendix L-3, is an example of a format to aid in your proposal for narrative TA and BOE Technical Resources information.

TO:  This section requires three types of data, organized by contract deliverable item (CLINs from Clause B.3) as follows: 1) Technical Approach (TA) data; 2) Basis of Estimate (BOE) data; and, 3) Resources data.  Provide labor resources data in the Excel spreadsheet format (RFP Templates – Altair.xls) provided in Appendix L-3.  The file entitled “Narrative TRT sample.doc,” provided in Appendix L-3, is an example of a format to aid in your proposal for narrative TA and BOE Technical Resources information.

III.   No replacement pages to the solicitation are issued as part of this amendment.  
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